
Fire-Retardant-Treated Wood: An American Innovation 
 

Attempts to increase the fire resistance of wood are by no means new.  Coatings and dipping 
or steeping methods originated thousands of years ago as mentioned by Aulus Gellius in Attic 
Nights, and there are many more archaic descriptions covering materials for this purpose.  
Pressure impregnation methods of “fireproofing” wood are of more recent origin, though records 
of early efforts in foreign countries go back over two centuries.  Joseph Louis Gay-Lussac is 
credited with the development of fire retardants for wood when in 1820 he proposed treatments 
with ammonium phosphates and borax.  This article, however, explores the development, history 
and use of Fire-Retardant-Treated Wood in the United States.  

In the United States, the commercial fire-retardant treatment of wood by pressure 
impregnation was commercialized by Max Bachert and the Electric FireProofing Company, later 
known as the Protextol Corporation, in the early 1890’s, with the first commercial installation 
reportedly made in 1895.  The first important demand for fire-retardant treated wood in this 
country apparently came from the U. S. Navy for use in battleship construction.  A few years 
later, in 1898, the City of New York gave further impetus to the embryo industry by adopting a 
revised building code, which required that wood, used in the construction of buildings over 150 
feet in height, be treated to make it "fireproof."  From that time until the beginning of World War 
II the industry was localized around the New York – New Jersey area.   

The tremendous military demands for fire-retardant-treated lumber in the early 1940’s caused 
the industry to expand nationwide.  Its principal uses were for the construction of dirigible 
hangars and for shoring aboard ships.  In 1943, 65 million board feet of plywood and lumber 
were treated.  By 1946 production had dropped to less than 5 million.  

Growth was stagnant during the 1950’s and 60’s until the superior fire performance of 
pressure-impregnated fire-retardant-treated wood (FRTW) was recognized by insurance 
underwriting organizations on a national basis.  In 1962, the Basic Building Code was the first 
model building code to acknowledge FRTW as a structural alternative to steel and concrete in 
noncombustible types of construction. FRTW was incorporated in Supplement 1 of the 1960 
edition of the Basic Building Code promulgated by the Building Official Conference of America.   
Similar provisions for FRTW were published in the Uniform Building Code and the Standard 
Building Code in 1962 as well.  In the 1970’s, exterior fire-retardant-treated wood was 
developed extending applications to cedar shake & shingle roofing, siding, and other applications 
requiring moisture resistance such as exterior decks and balconies.  

With consolidation of the regional model codes into the International Building Code in 2000 
and publishing of the first edition of the International Wildland Urban Interface Code in 2003, 
fire-retardant-treated wood has become an American Innovation specified for a greater range of 
structures than ever before (Table 1).  Code-mandated or owner preferred applications are varied 
and significant, ranging from homes built in the wildland-urban interface to scaffolding in 
nuclear power plants.  

The demand for FRTW is still growing and applications for it appear almost limitless 
including warehouses, data centers, and offices for modern building owners like Amazon, Meta, 
and Google. But mostly, FRTW is used in familiar everyday places like schools, churches, 
hospitals, shopping centers, restaurants, theaters, high-rise condominiums and even single-family 
homes protecting people from fire protection where they live and work. 
 



 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Electric Fireproofing Company Plant New York City, NY 
 

 
 
USS Nashville first ship to be protected with fire-retardant-treated wood 1895. 
 
 



 
 
All wood (including formwork and scaffolding) used in the construction of the Perisphere, 
Trylon and Helicline at the1939 New York World's Fair, was fire-retardant-treated. 
 
 
 
 



 
 
Hanger used to house US Navy submarine patrol blimps were constructed of fire-retardant-
treated lumber and plywood during World War II. 
 
 

 
 
Modern 1.2 million square foot warehouse that features a hybrid panelized roof system utilizing 
fire-retardant-treated lumber and plywood.  
 
 



 


